
 

 
 

  
  Shropshire Council 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Shirehall 
Abbey Foregate 
Shrewsbury 
SY2 6ND 

   
Date: 15 January 2015 
 
 

 
Committee:  
Decision Making Session by Portfolio Holder for Children's Services 
 
Date: Friday, 23 January 2015 
Time: 3.30 pm 
Venue: Room 1S 131, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 6ND 
  
You are requested to attend the above meeting.  
The Agenda is attached 
 
 
Claire Porter 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
Members of Decision Making Session by Portfolio Holder for Children's Services 
Ann Hartley   
 
 
Your Committee Officer is:  
 
Penny Chamberlain  Principal Committee Officer 
Tel:   01743 252729 
Email:   penny.chamberlain@shropshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 
1  Residential Services Redesign (Pages 1 - 8) 

 
Report of the Director of Children’s Services is attached marked 1. 
 
Contact: Karen Bradshaw – 01743 254201 
 
 
 
 
Note:  Portfolio Holder Decision Making Sessions are not open to the public. 
However members of the public are welcome to submit a request to address or 
ask a question of the Member making the portfolio decision.  Any request should 
be submitted in writing to the Chief Executive at The Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, 
Shrewsbury, SY2 6ND by no later than 2 clear working days before the 
proposed Member Session.  This is to ensure that the individual member has 
sufficient time to decide whether or not to hear such persons and if so the 
arrangements to be made.  If you would like further details please telephone 
01743 252729 or email penny.chamberlain@shropshire.gov.uk 
 
 



Portfolio Holder Decision
Making

23 January 2015

3.30 pm

Item

1

Public

RESIDENTIAL SERVICES REDESIGN

Service Area: Children Social Work and Safeguarding - Residential

Responsible Officer Tina Russell, Head of Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding
Email: tina.russell@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01742 254254 Fax:

1. Summary

1.1 Reason for Redesign and Restructure

This redesign is concerned with the provision of residential care for children looked after
and their role in delivering services to children and families as part of their journey through
our services and in achieving the overall outcomes for children.

This report sets out the proposals for approval.

For children assessed to be in need of local authority care the placement provision redesign
seeks to ensure these children are;

Supported to remain in parental care preventing the need for separation from family and
or support to return to parental care where possible and safe;

Accommodated in local placements that provide range and choice to meet the individual
needs of children and their families

Progressed through the care system in a timely way and supported to achieve
permanency through informed assessment of need.

2. Recommendations

That the redesign of children’s residential care is approved. Which could include the closure of the
Rowans children’s home and the expansion of Chelmaron. Any such proposals will involve
separate consultation with those affected, where appropriate.

REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

The use of internal residential services for children on the edge of care and in care is linked to the

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



2

commissioning of external residential care and the development of internal foster care provision.
Failure to achieve targets in these two strategies may result in a need to increase block and spot
purchased external placements.

Three young people currently placed at Rowen’s will progress in line with care plans and exist
Rowen’s in the re-design timescale. Change of the individual need/care plan may result in
alternative unplanned care placement being required.

4. Financial Implications

Costs Income / Savings

Revenu
e

Capital Revenue Capital

First financial year *assumed closure 1.4.15 0 0 345,240 0

Full financial year 0 0 345,240 0

One-off 0 0 0 0

On-going annual 0 0 0

Please provide a summary of how costs and

income/savings values are calculated.

0 0 345,240 0

1415 Budget £514,230 less reinvestment of £135,000

for 4 No support workers, Internal Market costs of

£18,670 and Pension Lump Sum of £15,320. In

addition if the building is not sold or leased immediately

rates will become due after 6 months (as the exemption

will no longer apply) as well as a small charge for gas,

electric & water.

Please provide a summary of how the net costs will

be funded.

5. Background

5.1 Context to redesign and restructure

Children and Young People Services is responsible for ensuring that all children and
young people in our county are kept safe from harm and achieve their full potential
becoming happy and heathy adults contributing to a positive resilient community.

We can’t do this on our own as council services and nor should we try. We need to
engage, challenge and support parents in their parental responsibility to raise their
children in safe and happy family environments and we need to work collaboratively
with our partners in other statutory and non-statutory services to support families and the
community to build their resilience and ability to identify and meet locally the needs of
children and to reduce demand and dependency on statutory and council interventions.

Each part of our service has been or is going through review and redesign to ensure that
everything we do is as efficient as it can be, focusing on the customer, prevention and
partnership.

Page 2



3

5.2 The key areas of service development for Children’s Social Work and Safeguarding
services are;

Early Help

Child Protection thresholds

Looked After Children.

The redesign of the service across these three areas has been to develop a strategy that
recognises the inter relationship between each area of business and importantly ensure
that a child’s journey through the service is efficient and effective in achieving sustained
positive outcomes for them and their family and is delivered at best value to the public
purse.

Early Help supporting children and families at the first sign of need at the lowest level and
preventing increasing risk and complexity that result in the need for child protection or local
authority care specialist social work services.

Using a Think Family and Solution focused approach our early help strategy aims to
support professional in delivering targeted early help to children and families to ensure
intervention is effective in delivering the right service at the right time to children in need.

We are working with partners and within the council wide community development
programme to understand local needs and to support local innovation and resilience in
communities that can provide sustained support to children and families at the first and
lowest level of need.

Child Protection thresholds need tight and consistent application of “ significant harm”
ensuring that the right children are within this process and that where children continue to
suffer significant harm after a period of specialist intervention steps are taken in a timely
way to issue care proceedings and or plan for permanency outside of birth family care.
Alternatively, where change has been achieved for the child, we should ensure these
children and families are stepped down into effective early help services to prevent re-
escalation and sustain positive outcomes achieved by the family.

5.3 DfE data released 2014 identified a five year tend of year on year increased demand for
children accommodated into LA care for their protection and to promote their welfare. The
numbers have surged since 2007 and the death of baby Peter Connolly which demanded
more stringent child protection regimes to protect children. 2009 Shropshire had a rate of
32 per 10,000 rising to 44.4 in 2014 compared to All England rates of 40.5 in 2014 rising to
49.6.

5.4 Projecting Shropshire demand
In light of the national predication and our local LAC analysis, based on trends over the past
three years and in-year data, there is likely be an overall rise in the LAC population to 394
at 1.4.16 without any strategy being put in place. The review and redesign of how we use
our residential services to best effect in reducing the number of children coming into care
and achieving good outcomes for those in care is part of the wider LAC strategy.

5.5 Needs
Based on our own three year analysis we have identified that the biggest increase in the
LAC population has been and continues to be children aged 0-2yrs and young people aged
13-15yrs, with an increasing number of sibling groups.

Page 3



4

The significant proportion of young people accommodated at the age of 13yrs and over are
unable to function positively in another family setting and as such require a residential care
placement to meet their needs.

5.6 ADCS pressure report highlights the need to review how we address the risk and meet the
needs for young people in their adolescent years.

The research evidence shows LA care works least well for adolescent entrants and
reinforces the need to do things differently to achieve outcomes for those young people
entering the care system aged13-15yrs. Our own analysis shows the most likely outcome
for this group has been a return to parental care but the timeframe for this outcome being
achieved can range from months to years.

The evidence would appear to suggest there is a compelling case for systems re-design so
that approaches to protecting adolescents match more closely their life experience and
where possible supporting young people to remain in family care.

5.7 Our redesign of internal residential services, the review of our commissioning approach to
external residential care provision and our early help strategy aims to provide a range of
support to families and professionals in identifying and managing risk preventing the need
for LA care and supporting sustained rehabilitation.

6. Additional Information

6.1 Current Provision and Proposals

We currently have three internal residential homes in Shropshire.

Chelmaren provides for four children aged 8yrs plus who require medium – long term
care. The provision is well regarded by professionals and importantly young people. In
November 14 Chelmaren received an "Outstanding" Ofsted rating.

The proposal is for Chelmaren to increase to a six bedded home to provide medium -
long term care for five children and to use the sixth “bed” as a medium / long term
LAC shared care provision for families.

Shared care is a provision by which the child is received into LA care due to a need to
safeguard the child and offers support to parents to meet the needs of other children in their
family preventing further child protection issues arising for the siblings and or preventing full
family breakdown. For the looked after child they are able to maintain significant
relationships with birth parents and siblings who will continue to have a key role in
supporting the child through to adulthood and beyond. Shared care represents a saving in
cost as the child does not require 24/7 care and a single placement can be used by two
young people.

This type of shared care arrangement is often available through residential school for
children with special educational needs but is not a provision available to children who have
behavioural difficulties but who do not meet the higher need criteria for residential school.
As an in house residential provision this enables us to achieve against our strategy to
provide a range of choice in provision of placement types to meet need locally as is our
sufficiency duty.

Havenbrook until June 2014 Haven brook was an “assessment Unit” where children would
be placed for up to 12 -16 weeks whilst being assessed for longer term need. Providing

Page 4



5

short support breaks to children and young people where their families are feeling the
pressure and demand of child care is well recognised for children with disabilities.
Increasingly the needs and demands of parenting teenagers and children with behavioural
and learning needs are recognised and the value of a short break to the young person and
the parents is equally valuable.

In June 14 a pilot project began to offer support breaks to children on the edge of care aged
8-16yrs. The provision provides support breaks to the child and family at times of need
through planned provision reducing crisis and family breakdown.

In September 14 the pilot extended to provide crisis care for young people who had
experienced family breakdown and required immediate care whilst a social work
assessment was undertaken to identify need. As part of the assessment consideration of
whether a continued planned short breaks provision would enable a young person to return
home has been key.

A separate evaluation report on Havenbrook will be completed at the end of Dec 14.
However to date 34 children have used the short breaks provision as part of a plan to
support families and prevent the need for LA care. Only 3 of these children have required,
at a later stage, to be admitted to care. Since September 10 children have been admitted to
Havenbrook for a crisis short break provision. Four of these children went home and we
were able to prevent the need for LA care by offering family based work and in one case
planned short breaks. One young person moved into a supported board and lodgings
placement as although she could not return home it was felt she could not make a positive
transition to another care arrangements and was more likely to achieve positive outcome
sin supported living. She is now very settled following a significant period of risk in the
community from being missing and repeated family breakdown. The other four, who
required LA care, were matched to an appropriate placement provision and moved in a
planned way supporting their stability of care planning.

The outcome of the evaluation is very positive and will be confirming a continuation of
Havenbrook as a short breaks resource. Therefore this continues to be part of this service
redesign proposal.

The Rowans has until now provided a four bed provision mainly for the adolescent age
group and is based close to the town centre. Rowans has provided good care to its young
people over many years but we are now looking for ways to do things differently with
existing resources and where possible to find saving.

As part of the LAC strategy we are re-commissioning our external block provision to
achieve more local choice and lower the average cost of care placements. The prevention
approach in our LAC strategy also aims to reduce the number of children of this age range
coming into care by providing earlier and longer term support to children in family care.

Therefore going forward we believe we can achieve better outcomes for this age group by
focusing on prevention, placing in smaller homes when LAC is required and commissioning
at a lower cost through block commissioning.

It is proposed that to support our edge of care and rehabilitation strategy we will recruit four
full time outreach residential staff who can provide Monday – Saturday flexible intervention
into the family home.

These experienced residential care staff will be able to support parents in behaviour
management and will provide 1-1 direct work with young people working with them on their
strengths and to develop resilience.

Page 5



6

Staff will be line managed within the residential service from Havenbrook and will
focus intervention to young people who have received crisis intervention to prevent the
need for LAC and or those exiting care and returning to parental / family care.

In addition to their residential experience and training staff will be trained in the
Understanding your Teens Behaviour programme and in specialist areas of risk and
need including Missing, CSE and young people living with domestic abuse in their
family.

The proposal is for closure of the Rowans and sale of the property achieving a one off
capital gains saving.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but
does not include items containing exempt or confidential information):

Paper to Young People’s Scrutiny 17 December 2014

ADCS position statement What is care for

ADCS position statement – Alternative models of care for Adolescents

That Difficult age: Developing a more effective response to risk in
adolescents research in practice Nov 14

Edging away from care – Ofsted October 11

Key Decision: No

Included within Forward Plan: Yes

If a Key Decision and not included in the Forward Plan have the General
Exception or Special Urgency Procedures been complied with: N/A

Name and Portfolio of Executive Member responsible for this area of
responsibility:

Ann Hartley

Local Member:

All Members

Appendices:

Page 6



7

Declaration of Interest

I have no interest to declare in respect of this report

Signed ………………………………… Date ………………………………………

NAME: …………………………………………………………………………………

PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR: ……………………………………………………….

I have to declare an interest in respect of this report

Signed ………………………………… Date ………………………………………

NAME: …………………………………………………………………………………

PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR: ……………………………………………………….

(Note: If you have an interest you should seek advice as to whether it is appropriate to make a
decision in relation to this matter.)

For the reasons set out in the report, I agree the recommendation(s) in the report entitled

……Residential Services Redesign………………………………………….

Signed …………………………………………………………………………………………

Portfolio Holder for …………………………………………………………………………...

Date ………………………………………….

If you have any additional comment which you would want actioned in connection with your
decision you should discuss this with the report author and then set out your comment below
before the report and pro-forma is returned to Democratic Services for processing.

Additional comment : ………………………………………………………………………...

…………………………………………………………………………………………………..

………………………………………………………………………………………………….

Note: If you do not wish to approve the recommendations, or wish to make an alternative decision,
it is important that you consult the report author, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, Chief
Executive and the Head of Finance, Governance and Assurance (S151 Officer) and, if there are
staffing implications the Head of Human Resources (or their representatives) so that (1) you can
be made aware of any further relevant considerations that you should take into account before
making the decision and (2) your reasons for the decision can be properly identified and recorded,
as required by law.

Note to Portfolio Holder: Your decision will now be published and communicated to all Members
of Council. If the decision falls within the criteria for call-in, it will not be implemented until five
working days have elapsed from publication.

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Residential Services Redesign

